CITY OF FOREST PARK MAYOR & COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES Monday, March 1, 2021 | 6:00 PM

The Honorable Mayor Angelyne Butler, MPA

The Honorable Kimberly James The Honorable Dabouze Antoine
The Honorable Hector Gutierrez The Honorable Latresa Akins-Wells

The Honorable Allan Mears

Interim City Manager:

City Clerk:

City Attorney:

Shalonda Brown
Sharee Steed
Mike Williams

I. CALL TO ORDER/WELCOME: The meeting was called to order at 6:00pm by Mayor Butler.

II. ROLL CALL- CITY CLERK: Roll Called was done and a quorum was established

Attendee's Name	Title	Absent	Present
Angelyne Butler, MPA	Mayor, At-Large		√
Kimberly James	Council Member, Ward 1		✓
Dabouze Antoine	Council Member, Ward 2, Mayor Pro-Tem		√
Hector Gutierrez	Council Member, Ward 3		√
Latresa Akins-Wells	Council Member, Ward 4 (via telephone)		√
Allan Mears	Council Member, Ward 5		√

III. CITY MANAGER'S REPORT: Shalonda Brown

Interim City Manager reported on the following: Fri., Feb. 26th Mr. Greg Fevet of Cookiegrams received his Proclamation from Mayor and Councilmembers; Mayor and Councilmembers participated in the Ribbon Cutting ceremony honoring the Community's New Vietnam War Memorial in Morrow on Sat., Feb. 27th. Upcoming Events - Clayton County Community Services Authority is offering COVID-19 Care Community Emergency Assistance services on gas and electric bills for residents, Henry, Fayette and Clayton Counties; A virtual Unity & Healing in the Community is schedule for Mar. 4th at 6pm, sponsored by Councilmember James; Virtual Hunger Walk/Run on Sun., Mar. 7th to benefit Forest Park High School Team; Ward 1 monthly Virtual Neighborhood Meeting with Councilmember James is Thurs., Mar. 18th at 5pm; the Development Authority, Downtown Development Authority and the Urban Redevelopment Authority meetings will be held on Wed., March 24th. Detailed information about all upcoming events is posted on the City's website.

IV. COVID-19 UPDATE: Division Chief, Joel Turner

There are general improvements in positive case numbers over the past two weeks. The current average rate of daily positives among those tested statewide is 7.4% for the past two weeks; 2.5% lower than at Council's last meeting mid-February.

As of today, 3/1/2021:

• Clayton County's 2-week average rate of daily positives is 9.4%, 1.9% reduction since last reported

As reported by Clayton Co Health District this afternoon: 3/1/2021

• Forest Park currently has 2036 cumulative cases: 9.7% of county cases on the 30297 zip. This remains consistent with the numbers we have seen for the area over the past several weeks.

Everyone is still highly encouraged to follow good personal hygiene practices

- wash hands frequently,
- use hand sanitizer,
- maintain physical distancing,
- and use masks.

We still encourage those who can get a flu shot. As a reminder, the general recommendation is to allow 3-4 weeks after receiving the influenza vaccine before receiving the COVID vaccination. Getting the Flu Vaccine now will help to further reduce the number of respiratory infections throughout the winter. Again, this vaccination is covered by most major insurance providers, including Medicare & Medicaid, and is available through most pharmacies and professional medical providers.

COVID Vaccinations continue for Tier1A individuals. Last week the Governor expanded the group of those eligible to receive the vaccine to include teachers and K-12 school employees, including private school, preschool, and daycare employees. Eligibility for this new group will begin Monday, March 8th. The Clayton County Health District is offering free vaccines and you may register for those vaccination appointments by going to www.claytoncountypublichealth.org. Continue to check the website as appointment slots are based on vaccine availability.

I. PRESENTATION(S):

• The CROWN Act- Representative Kim Schofield

Representative Schofield informed Mayor and Council that the House passed the Voter Bill HB531 today, this bill is a Voters suppression bill, which will go to the Senate for changes/amendments and then come back to the House. I will keep you updated on this. The Crown Act Bill HB230, Creating a World of Natural Hair. There is a bias for those that have natural hair, there is a practice, especially in the workplace that have discriminated against us because of our hair, hairstyle, whether it be locks, braids, any form of twist; there is also a huge discrimination to kids' school, being labeled because their hair. We must change that narrative, this is a national movement, that started and passed first in California, although it is a House Bill, the State has refused to give us a hearing on this, so locally, counties have been passing the Crown Act through various municipalities. Clayton County, City of Atlanta and Henry County has passed a bill; Dekalb and Gwinnet Counties will be passing a bill. I would like to present this opportunity for an Ordinance to be passed in the City of Forest Park that eliminate any barriers to discrimination when it comes to natural hair. What is this so important in 2021, is my point, there could not be a barrier for anyone.

Comments/Questions from Council:

Councilmember Antoine – Following the HB230, and it does not make sense how your hair comes out of your head because it does not look like someone else's hair is a form of suppression. Once the bill goes back to the Senate, that is a Republic ran Senate, and it not an optimistic look for the bill not being passed?

Representative Schofield – Yes, it is Republic; we are going to fight wherever we can, we are not in the majority, we do not have the manpower. What we can and you can do is to empower your residents of Forest Park to make they are calling the members that are on the committee, calling the Governor's Lieutenant Governor's office, the Speaker of the House saying you oppose any voter's suppression bill, Senate Bill 241 and HB531. We must get in front of this to use our voice and power to say that any form of voter's suppression will not be tolerated.

Councilmember James – Thanked Representative Schofield for bring this information to our forefront.

Councilmember Gutierrez – How can we bring more attention to this? Is there anything we can share?

Representative Schofield – If it is the will of the Council to pass the Ordinance, we will have do a press conference, continue to educate our businesses and Town Hall meetings to understand the impact.

Mayor Butler – My official photo for the City, I have braids in the photo, and we I was sharing with someone that I was getting braids, they questioned the timing of it because they knew the photo shoot was coming up and I was discouraged to do the photo with braids, but I did and am proud of it. I did not realize the impact that it had on people, just seeing the photo and me in braids. I support the CROWN ACT.

• Fatherhood is Brotherhood - Director, Lamont Jones

Lamont Jones, Director of Fatherhood is Brotherhood Foundation gave a presentation on his organization. Trying to connect with young fathers and assist them with being productive fathers. There will be a virtual 5-week session in April on "Next Level Fatherhood" totally free. Asking for City of Forest Park to partner with them.

Comments/Questions from Council:

Councilmember James - Asked about the number and phrase they could text? Is it free for the young men to be a part or will they get more information after they text. Thank you for this, young men do not realize how much they are forced out of situations when having a child out of wedlock and for them to understand how to be part of the child life. However, I can help I will assist.

Lamont Jones – Replied with 66866 Fatherhoodisbrotherhood. Yes, everything is free. He gave council his contact information.

Councilmember Antoine – Stated that he has some resources that Mr. Jones may be able to use. The expungement services you offer is great; mental illness is a service that is needed as well. He recommended Mr. Jones reach out to the Clayton School Board to do a presentation; and gave information on two organization who provide grants - Gates Foundation (targets education) and the NBA Cares.

Rep. Schofield – To piggyback with CM Antoine, I am working with another organization called Confess Project, which I have introduced them to Mr. Jones, they deal with the mental health aspect through the barber shops as well.

Councilmember Gutierrez – Thanks for the information and for the work that you are providing for fathers. The impact you are doing is great.

V. REGULAR MEETING AGENDA ITEMS:

> OLD BUSINESS: NONE

- > NEW BUSINESS:
 - 1. Discussion to Approve ORDINANCE 2021-06 to adopt the CROWN Act for the City of Forest Park City Attorney, Mike Williams

Background and Summary:

In 2019, California became the first state in the nation to adopt the CROWN Act. CROWN stands for "Create a Respectful and Open Workplace for Natural Hair." The act seeks to prohibit discrimination based on hair texture or cultural hair styles. Members of the Georgia General Assembly are seeking to have similar legislation approved in Georgia. They are asking local governments to adopt Crown Act ordinances in their jurisdictions in hopes that it will lend support to their efforts at the state level. The proposed ordinance is based on an ordinance recently adopted by the City of South Fulton.

Comments/Questions from Council: - There was no comments/questions

2. Discussion to Approve RESOLUTION 2021-09, Urging the Forest Park Legislative Delegation to Support House Bill 151- City Attorney, Mike Williams

Background and Summary:

Clayton County, its cities and the Clayton County School Board have been working for years on how to address the impact Hartsfield-Jackson Atlanta International Airport has on Clayton County and its residents. It is proposed that the Hartsfield-Jackson Atlanta International Airport land and improvements that occupy over 4,100 acres of Clayton County no longer be exempt from ad valorem taxation. House Bill 151, which was introduced in the 2021-2022 Regular Session of the General Assembly, would eliminate the ad valorem tax exemption for Hartsfield-Jackson Atlanta International Airport. Clayton County residents and the children of the Clayton County School System would greatly benefit from the increased revenues which result from the elimination of the aforementioned tax exemption. It would also make up much of the lost revenue associated with the elimination of sales taxes on aviation fuel.

Comments/Questions from Council:

Councilmember James – Do we have an estimate of revenue it will generate? I think this is great, are we doing this in collaboration with other cities and county?

Attorney Williams – We can get that for you, and it is based on a valuation of the airport and because it has been exempted forever, the assessments are not accurate. If this pass, it would have to be properly assessed. Yes, we are, this was introduced last year and is a part of the collaborative effort the other cities, Clayton County, and the School Board. It has been reintroduced for this session and I believe, will stand corrected, that City of Forest Park is the first to adopt a Resolution, but all the cities, the county and School Board are in support.

Councilmember Gutierrez – Because of the proximity that we have than other cities, would we be entitled to more? Is this something they take to court or deny?

Attorney Williams – There is no airport property in the City of Forest Park, so we would not directly receive enhanced revenues, but Clayton County. the School Board and City of College Park would. The City of Atlanta would fight this and tenants who operate at the airport. Our delegation has asked for a show of support on this.

3. Discussion to Approve ORDINANCE 2021-07 on the limitations of certain types of businesses as recommended by the Planning Commission Board - Planning Director, James Shelby, City Attorney, Mike Williams

Background and Summary:

In 2020, the City Council passed a business limitation ordinance (Sec. 8.8.42) that limits certain types of businesses from operating within the City of Forest Park, due to an oversaturation of these types of businesses. A local business owner requested an amendment to the business limitation ordinance. He felt that the limitation was causing an undue hardship on his indoor shopping center. City staff reviewed this request and proposed a text amendment to this ordinance to exclude indoor shopping centers, malls, and flea markets.

Comments/Questions from Council: - There was no comments/questions

4. Discussion to Approve the Drive Thru Job Fair Partnership with ABM Aviation - Tarik Maxwell, Director of Recreation & Leisure Services

Background and Summary:

ABM currently has 140,000 skilled and hardworking people who deliver exceptional facility services. Currently, at the HJAIA, they employ over 600 employees and are looking to expand by embracing the Forest Park community and offering employment opportunities to job seekers in the Forest Park area. ABM Aviation is looking to add over 200 employment opportunities. The company would like to partner with the City of Forest Park for a drive thru job fair, this event will be held on March 10th from 11am to 2pm on Hines Ward Pass. This drive-thru hiring event will be a non-contact adaptation of an on-site hiring event. Job Seekers will remain in their vehicles for the duration of the event. Job seekers will be able to apply for the job via text message. ABM Aviation seasoned recruitment staff will interview candidates and extend job offers on the same day while following CDC guidelines which include social distancing and mask guidelines.

Comments/Questions from Council:

Councilmember Antoine – Asked if applicants would need to bring any information with them?

Tarik Maxwell – Ms. Tammy Gomez, Sr. Recruiter for ABM Aviation. No, they will not have to bring anything initially.

Councilmember James – Thanks this is awesome. What are the range of positions that you are hiring for? And the starting salary to the maximum salary range?

Tammy Gomez – Entry level with no experience starting at \$9.50 to \$16.50 and this is just the aviation industry. We also have industries in health care, technology, education, and business plus. We are starting out with aviation and hoping to expand it out to the other industries.

5. Discussion to Approve the Urban Redevelopment Plan – City Attorney, Mike Williams

Comments/Questions from Council: There was no comments/questions

- 6. Discussion to Approve an Agreement for Covid-19 Testing with Onsite Laboratories Inc.
 - A. Girard Geeter, Procurement Manager

Comments/Questions from Council:

Arthur Geeter gave a brief statement of this request. Charles Pickett has a mobile lab to perform COVID-19 testing and results back with hours. They would like to place their unit

at Starr Park for set up.

Charles Pickett – CEO of SRS, Inc. owners of Lablin and On-Site Laboratories spoke about his company and the mobile and can do HIV and Hepatitis C testing.

Mayor Butler – Stated Chief Clark did some research and contacted some of their references And one was Dr. Price stated that the pros to having this service in the community was it was great services and same day results lends to getting information to our patients and customers quickly, great for infection exposures and PCR, great experience they handled all the set. There were no cons at this point. Possible time for delivery samples could have been better. Second contact Jackson City Government, Jackson, MS, stated they were very happy and wished they had waited a few extra weeks to enact the mobile rapid testing, since it was the same timing of the vaccines. The city has several mobile stations, one at the police station and the citizens were encouraged to access the site.

Councilmember Gutierrez – Once it is set up, can it be move to different communities throughout the day?

Charles Pickett – We can set-up in different Wards, we have a concierge service where we go into the schools, police stations or senior facilities to collect the samples and take them back to laboratory.

Councilmember James – It this free of charge? If they are A-symptomatic, then there is a cost?

Charles Pickett – There is no charge, under the current CARES act; if they have insurance, their insurance covers it; no insurance and have been exposed or have symptoms it is free of charge.

Mayor Butler – Do you issue the vaccine?

Charles Pickett – We were just approved on yesterday to do the vaccines in Georgia.

Councilmember Gutierrez – Can we as a city provide transportation for the testing?

VI. ADJOURNMENT:

Councilmember James motioned and Councilmember Gutierrez to adjourn the Work Session Meeting at 7:07pm. Motion was approved.

Councilmembers	Aye	No	Abstain
Kimberly James	X		
Dabouze Antoine	X		
Hector Gutierrez	X		
Latresa Akins-Wells	X		
Allan Mears	X		

CITY OF FOREST PARK MAYOR & COUNCIL

REGULAR SESSION MEETING MINUTES

Monday, March 1, 2021 | 7:00 PM

The Honorable Mayor Angelyne Butler, MPA

The Honorable Kimberly James The Honorable Dabouze Antoine
The Honorable Hector Gutierrez The Honorable Latresa Akins-Wells

The Honorable Allan Mears

Interim City Manager:

City Clerk:

City Attorney:

Shalonda Brown
Sharee Steed
Mike Williams

- I. CALL TO ORDER/WELCOME: The meeting was called to order at 7:07pm by Mayor Butler.
- II. INVOCATION: Was done by Minister Justin Cook
- III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Was done in unison
- IV. ROLL CALL- CITY CLERK: Roll Called was done and a quorum was established

Attendee's Name	Title	Absent	Present
Angelyne Butler, MPA	Mayor, At-Large		√
Kimberly James	Council Member, Ward 1		√
Dabouze Antoine	Council Member, Ward 2, Mayor Pro-Tem		√
Hector Gutierrez	Council Member, Ward 3		✓
Latresa Akins-Wells	Council Member, Ward 4 (via telephone)		√
Allan Mears	Council Member, Ward 5		√

DIRECTORS PRESENT: A. Girard Geeter, Procurement Manager; Darquita Williams, Deputy Finance Director; James Shelby, Director of Planning & Zoning and Don Horton, Fire Chief

- V. PUBLIC COMMENTS: (3 MINUTE LIMIT) There was no Public Comments
- VI. ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA WITH ANY ADDITIONS/DELETIONS:
- VII. ADOPTION OF THE MINUTES: Monday, February 15, 2021 Council Work Session and Regular Meeting Minutes

Councilmember Mears motioned and Councilmember James to adopt the Feb. 15, 2021 Council Work Session and Regular Meeting Minutes. Motion was approved.

Councilmembers	Aye	No	Abstain
Kimberly James	X		
Dabouze Antoine	X		

Hector Gutierrez	X	
Latresa Akins-Wells	X	
Allan Mears	X	

VIII. PUBLIC HEARING:

1. Approval of RESOLUTION 2021-12 Adopting Urban Redevelopment Plan Entitled City of Forest Park, Georgia 2021 Urban Redevelopment Plan

Councilmember James motioned and Councilmember Antoine to Open the Public Hearing. Motion was approved.

Councilmembers	Aye	No	Abstain
Kimberly James	X		
Dabouze Antoine	X		
Hector Gutierrez	X		
Latresa Akins-Wells	X		
Allan Mears	X		

Attorney Williams – At the last meeting, council approved a resolution designating an additional area for the urban redevelopment agency to operate in which was Starr Park and then a corridor going down Forest Parkway towards the farmers market which would include the new proposed location of the city center. That was Part One of a two-step process, the second step is to hold a Public Hearing on the actual Urban Redevelopment Plan for that area and the plan provides the areas to be redeveloped through the acquisition construction installation of a new city municipal complex, which would have a city hall and public safety component, which would include police and fire headquarters as well as a fire station, all part of that complex. There would be streetscape improvements along main street, multimodal trail running from Starr Park to the State Farmers Market which we have been referring to as the Model Mile; renovation of Starr Park and additionally the acquisition and installation of certain early warning sirens as our current sirens need replacement. These are public facilities and only the URA can assist in the financing of public facilities that are not economic development related. Once an approved and once a financing plan is in place, we would anticipate the URA would meet and work towards the issuance of financing in the form of bonds for finance these projects. The projects will be all controlled wholly by the city.

There were no speakers for or against.

Councilmember Mears motioned and Councilmember James to motioned to Close the Public Hearing. Motion was approved.

Councilmembers	Aye	No	Abstain
Kimberly James	X		
Dabouze Antoine	X		
Hector Gutierrez	X		
Latresa Akins-Wells	X		
Allan Mears	X		

Councilmember James motioned and Councilmember Gutierrez to approve the 2021 Urban Redevelopment Plan. Motion was approved.

Councilmembers	Aye	No	Abstain
Kimberly James	X		
Dabouze Antoine	X		
Hector Gutierrez	X		
Latresa Akins-Wells	X		
Allan Mears	X		

2. Approval of ORDINANCE 2021-07 on the limitations of certain types of businesses as recommended by the Planning Commission Board

Councilmember James motioned and Councilmember Mears to Open the Public Hearing. Motion was approved.

Councilmembers	Aye	No	Abstain
Kimberly James	X		
Dabouze Antoine	X		
Hector Gutierrez	X		
Latresa Akins-Wells	X		
Allan Mears	X		

Attorney Williams – There is a business owner that operates an indoor shopping center or some may call it an indoor flea market and within that enclosed space it is proposed that some of the businesses that are subject to our business limitation ordinance be allowed to operate because it is in one enclosed singular location and so the over saturation issues, the distance limitation issues city-wide are not impacted the way it might otherwise be if these were stand alone businesses outside that area. We went and looked at the ordinance and made some revisions and what you have before you are what was approved by the Planning Commission at their last meeting, and I think staff is prepared to recommend approval.

There were no speakers for or against.

Councilmember James motioned and Councilmember Gutierrez to Close the Public Hearing. Motion was approved.

Councilmembers	Aye	No	Abstain
Kimberly James	X		
Dabouze Antoine	X		
Hector Gutierrez	X		
Latresa Akins-Wells	X		
Allan Mears	X		

Councilmember James motioned and Councilmember Antoine to approve Ordinance 2021-07 on the Limitations of Certain Types of Business with the Recommendations from Planning Commission Board. Motion was approved.

Councilmembers	Aye	No	Abstain
Kimberly James	X		
Dabouze Antoine	X		
Hector Gutierrez	X		
Latresa Akins-Wells	X		
Allan Mears	X		

IX. AGENDA ITEMS:

➤ NEW BUSINESS:

1. Approval of ORDINANCE 2021-06 to adopt the CROWN Act for the City of Forest Park – City Attorney, Mike Williams

Councilmember James motioned and Councilmember Gutierrez to approved Ordinance

2021-06 Adopting the CROWN Act. Motion was approved.

Councilmembers	Aye	No	Abstain
Kimberly James	X		
Dabouze Antoine	X		
Hector Gutierrez	X		
Latresa Akins-Wells	X		
Allan Mears	X		

2. Approval of RESOLUTION 2021-10, Urging the Forest Park Legislative Delegation to Support House Bill 151- City Attorney, Mike Williams

Councilmember James motioned and Councilmember Gutierrez to approve Resolution 2021-09 Urging the Legislative Delegation to Support HB151. Motion was approved.

Councilmembers	Aye	No	Abstain
Kimberly James	X		
Dabouze Antoine	X		
Hector Gutierrez	X		
Latresa Akins-Wells	X		
Allan Mears	X		

3. Approval of RESOLUTION 2021-11 for the Drive Thru Job Fair Partnership with ABM Aviation - Tarik Maxwell, Director of Recreation & Leisure Services

Councilmember James motioned and Councilmember Mears to approve the Resolution of a Drive-Thru Job Fair Partnership with ABM Aviation. Motion was approved.

Councilmembers	Aye	No	Abstain
Kimberly James	X		
Dabouze Antoine	X		
Hector Gutierrez	X		
Latresa Akins-Wells	X		
Allan Mears	X		

4. Approve an Agreement for Covid-19 Testing with On-site Laboratories, Inc. - A. Girard Geeter, Procurement Manager

Councilmember James motioned and Councilmember Mears to approve an Agreement for COVID-19 Testing with On-site. Motion was approved.

Councilmember Mears – Is there going to be any liability on the city?

Attorney Williams – Yes, we modified the agreement that was presented to make it clear that there is no cost or no expectations of reimbursement from the city and all liability is on them. The company is indemnifying the city against any claims, if a resident or anyone were to have a claim it would be the company's obligation to handle, not the city's.

Councilmembers	Aye	No	Abstain
Kimberly James	X		
Dabouze Antoine	X		
Hector Gutierrez	X		
Latresa Akins-Wells			
Allan Mears	X		

X. CLOSING COMMENTS BY GOVERNING BODY:

Councilmember James – Remind everyone to go to the Clayton County's website for the mortgage rent shortfalls due to COVID, we do have funds to help with your mortgage or rent, please take advantage of that. You can call the Clayton County Community Services at 404-363-0575 and the website is www.csa.org it has a link for Forest Park residents to take advantage of this program. Remember on Thursday, Unity and Healing in the Community meeting; if you want to donate to the Hunger Walk/Run that is on the website. Thank you for coming and thank you for being of our great city of Forest Park.

Councilmember Antoine – Would like to say hello to Naomi J. Pierre, who is listening in from New York, thank you for reaching out to us. It goes to show you that Forest Park is making big moves. Again, you all are aware of the COVID-19 Cares Act, the Community Service Assistance Program, I urge everyone to take advantage of this, you could get \$800 to pay your electric bill.

Councilmember Gutierrez – Thank you for listening in and I echo my fellow councilmembers, we have these resources for you, so please take advantage of them. When you do not, it affects the funding that comes to needy areas. I am excited about the mobile testing for you and as your elected officials are doing this for you to make sure that you get tested and healthy and hopefully, we can have the mobile vaccines soon. Remember to take care of yourselves, there is still a pandemic and I hope to have my Food Truck Friday event next month. I am excited about today's program, if you know of any father's, we have this information here for them; any young fathers out there, we have resources for you as well. This is women's month, so I appreciate all the women that make my job easier. Congratulation to the boys' basketball team who are doing great, and the girls are still there, and it is a validation that we need more basketball courts in Forest Park.

Councilmember Wells – Thank you for listening in and have a blessed night.

Councilmember Mears – Thanks for listening in tonight, trying to keep up and seeing that we are trying to move the city forward in a positive way and trying to help everyone that we can.

Mayor Butler – Thank you everyone for listening, Rep. Schofield thank you so much for staying with us tonight and we made some great strides today, so thank you again for your leadership.

XI. **EXECUTIVE SESSION:** Personnel, Litigation, Real Estate and Legal Matters

Councilmember James motioned and Councilmember Mears to recess into Executive Session at 7:27pm. Motion was approved.

Councilmembers	Aye	No	Abstain
Kimberly James	X		
Dabouze Antoine	X		
Hector Gutierrez	X		
Latresa Akins-Wells	X		
Allan Mears	X		

For the Record – Councilmember Antoine left the meeting at 8:25pm

Councilmember James motioned and Councilmember Mears to reconvene back into the Regular Council Meeting at 8:56pm. Motion was approved.

Councilmembers	Aye	No	Abstain
Kimberly James	X		
Dabouze Antoine			
Hector Gutierrez	X		
Latresa Akins-Wells			
Allan Mears	X		

XII. ADJOURNMENT:

Councilmember James motioned and Councilmember Mears to adjourn the Regular Meeting at 8:57pm. Motion was approved.

Councilmembers	Aye	No	Abstain
Kimberly James	X		
Dabouze Antoine			
Hector Gutierrez	X		
Latresa Akins-Wells			
Allan Mears	X		

